HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
May 1, 2005
1:18 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmttee neeting to
order at 1:18:30 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Holm (t el econferenced)
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly
Representative Carl Mses

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

VEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Speaker Representative John Harris; Representative Paul
Seaton; Representative Beth Kerrtula; Representative Kurt
A son; Senator Ral ph Seekins; Mlanie MIIhorn, Drector,
Division of Reti renent and Benefits, Depart nent of
Adm ni stration; Bruce Ludwi g, Business Mnager, Al aska
Public Enployees Association (APEA); Virgina Ragle,
Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Department of Law, Traci
Carpenter, Staff, Senator Lyda Geen; Pete Kelly, D rector,
State Relations, University of Alaska; Tom Boutin, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Revenue

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None
SUMVARY

CS SB 141(FIN)
An Act relating to the teachers' and public
enpl oyees' retirenent systens and creating defined
contribution and health reinbursenent plans for
menbers of the teachers' retirenent system and the
public enpl oyees' retirenment system who are first
hired after July 1, 2005; relating to university
retirenent pr ogr ans; establishing the Al aska

House Fi nance Committee 1 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Retirement Managenent Board to replace the Al aska
State Pension Investnent Boar d, the Al aska
Teachers' Ret i r ement Boar d, and the Public
Enpl oyees' Retirement Board; addi ng appeals of the
decisions of the admnistrator of the teachers'

and public enployees' retirenent systens to the
jurisdiction of the office of admnistrative
hearings; providing for non-vested nenbers of the
teachers' retirenent system defined benefit plans
to transfer into the teachers' retirenment system
defined contribution plan and for non-vested
nmenbers of the public enployees' retirenent system
defined benefit plans to transfer into the public
enpl oyees' retirenment system defined contribution
plan; providing for political subdivisions and
public organizations to request to participate in

t he public enpl oyees' defi ned contribution
retirement plan; and providing for an effective
dat e.

HCS CS SB 141 (FIN) was reported out of Conmittee
wth a “no recommendation” and with a new fisca
note by the Departnent of Adm nistration and a new
zero note by the House Finance Commttee for the
Department of Admnistration, fiscal note #1 by
the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities and fiscal notes #2, #4, #5, #6 and #7
by the Departnent of Revenue.

#SB141
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 141(FIN)

An Act relating to the teachers' and public enpl oyees'
retirement systens and creating defined contribution
and health reinbursenent plans for nenbers of the
teachers' retirenment system and the public enployees’
retirement system who are first hired after July 1,
2005; relating to wuniversity retirenent prograns;
establishing the Al aska Retirenent Mnagenent Board to
replace the Al aska State Pension |Investnent Board, the
Al aska Teachers' Retirenment Board, and the Public
Empl oyees' Retirenent Board; adding appeals of the
decisions of the admnistrator of the teachers' and
public enpl oyees'’ retirenent systens to t he
jurisdiction of the office of adm nistrative hearings;
providing for non-vested nenbers of the teachers

retirement system defined benefit plans to transfer
into t he t eachers’ retirenent system defined
contribution plan and for non-vested nenbers of the
public enployees' retirenent system defined benefit
plans to transfer into the public enployees' retirenent
system defined contribution plan; providing for
political subdivisions and public organizations to
request to participate in the public enployees' defined

House Fi nance Committee 2 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



contribution retirement plan; and providing for an
effective date.

1: 19: 27 PM

Representative Kelly MOWED to ADOPT Anendnent #8A.
Representative Croft OBJECTED.

Representative Kelly explained that the anendnent would
address the death benefit for the public enployee who was
killed or disabled in the line of duty. The anmbunt woul d be
$500 thousand dollars; the designated beneficiary would
receive $250 thousand dollars. The benefit would be in
addition to federal and Union benefits received.

Vice-Chair Stoltze inquired if the Admnistration had
conpared that to existing benefits. He referenced Anendnent
#14.

Representative Croft asked which section referenced
disability. Representative Hawker replied Anendnent #10A

MELANIE M LLHORN, DIRECTOR, DI VISION OF RETIREMENT AND
BENEFI TS, DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATION, explained that
Amendnent #8A created an “obligation” benefit. The current
benefit for the Public Enployee Retirenent System (PERS)
menbers under Tier 3 includes if there were no surviving
spouse and the nenber had dependant children, the nonthly
pensi on would be divided equally anongst those children.
The nmonthly survivor pension anounts to 40% of the nenber’s
gross salary at the tinme of death. For a police and
firefighter nenber, the nonthly survivor benefit is the
greater of 50% of the gross salary or 75% of the nornal
retirement benefit earned when retired. A new benefit
outlined in the acconmpanying chart anounts to $500 thousand
dollars, a lunp sum paynent. (Copy on File).

Representative Croft pointed out that the anendnent was
limted to peace officers and firefighters and asked if
current law had the sane limtations. M. MIIhorn pointed
out that the provisions in AS 39.35.430 applies to all the
other nenbers including police and firefighters. Al |
nmenbers have the occupati onal death benefit.

Representative Croft inquired the difference between a | unp-
sone paynment and the pension, referencing the pension tine
line. M. MIIhorn agreed.

Representative Croft thought for a young famly, the pension
woul d be nore preferable, whereas, the opposite was true for
sonmeone about to retire.

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON pointed out the annuity nunbers
i ndi cated on the chart.

House Fi nance Committee 3 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



1: 28: 36 PM

Representative Croft observed that the <chart nunbers
i ncluded the average age. He thought that there could be a
| arge difference for particular pensioners, under what is
currently received. Representative Seaton said the chart
illustrates ages 25 to 57 years old and provides a life
expect ancy.

1: 30: 56 PM

Representative Weyhrauch inquired if that program were in
effect, would the enployee need to opt into it or would they
automatically obtain the benefit once hired. Ms. M Il horn
expl ai ned that the nenber would enroll at the tinme they were
appointed to a position and would then need to nmake the
el ection.

Representative Wyhrauch explained that the difference
between the proposal and existing law is that at present
time, they are automatically entitled to the benefit. V5.

MIlhorn reiterated that the member woul d be enrolled and at
t hat tinme woul d make t he beneficiary el ection.

Representative Weyhrauch specifically asked if the enpl oyee
would have to elect the death penalty. Ms. MIlhorn
responded that it would be expected that a nenber would
chosen that benefit. The nenber woul d be enroll ed.

1: 32: 47 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked about the difference between
the benefits if the enployee were killed in the line of

duty. He inquired if the surviving children and spouse
woul d receive the benefit. Ms. MIlhorn replied that the
spouse becones the automatic beneficiary. Under the

anmendnent, it is expected that the children woul d becone the
next-in-line beneficiary.

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked if the enployee were over 57
and was killed, would they still receive the $500 thousand
dollars. Ms. MII|horn understood that was correct.

Representative Wyhrauch asked if there was any age
restriction on the benefit. Ms. MI1lhorn believed not.

1: 34: 54 PM

Representative Wyhrauch inquired what would the nonthly
benefit be fore the famly if the w dow chose not to remarry
if the young PERS nenber was killed. M. MIIlhorn responded
$500 thousand dol | ars.

1: 36:11 PM

House Fi nance Committee 4 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Representative Wyhrauch inquired the difference of the
benefit received between that systemand the existing Tier 3
benefit. M. MIlhorn explained that it would be necessary
to do sone conputations based on existing statute addressing
the death benefit under Tier 3 to determne the nenber’s
salary. She added it would be on a case-by-case basis.

1: 36: 52 PM

Representative Hawker understood that the anendnent would
include juvenile correction officers killed by a juvenile
of f ender. Representative Seaton pointed out that changing
exi sting statute was not addressed in Amendnent #8A.

V5. MIlhorn said that Anendnent #8A specifies the
definition in AS 39.35.680; in that section, they would not
be covered. Represent ati ve Hawker believed that class of
enpl oyee deserves death benefits. Ms. MIlhorn noted that
currently, individuals classified under existing statute are
given the benefit, however that group was not i ncl uded.

1: 39: 24 PM

Representative Seaton reiterated that it is in existing |aw
and that there is other legislation trying to make that
correction. Representative Hawker argued that one injustice
does not justify another.

Representative Croft wunderstood that current |aw covers
menbers and does not Iimt who receives the death benefit.
He pointed out that the proposed legislation does Iimt and
affects an entire class of State enpl oyees being cut out.

Representative Kelly explained that the purpose of the
anendnent was to work from the system causing the problens.
The intent of the anendnent addresses police and fire
fighters not covered by the death benefit. He noted ot her
options for enployees to buy termlife insurance.

1:41:17 PM

Co- Chair Meyer sunmarized that under the previous system
everyone was covered, and in the proposed |egislation peace
of ficers would be covered as defined in statute.

Representative Joul e asked about the Village Public Safety
Oficers (VPSO. Ms. MIlIborn replied that they would not
be covered under the police and fire fighter conponent.

Representative Joule inquired about inclusion of health
i nsurance benefits for surviving dependants and spouses.
Ms. MIlhorn did not think it was provided, however, she
offered to research it.

House Fi nance Committee 5 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



1: 42: 59 PM

Representative Croft stated that he preferred Amendnent #14,
whi ch had been w thdrawn on 4/30/05. (Copy on File). He
MOVED to substitute the text of that anmendnent into
Amendnent  #8A, which would keep the current death and
disability benefit. Representative Kelly OBJECTED. Co-
Chair Meyer understood that Anmendnent #14 had already been
di scussed and it was determ ned to be unworkabl e.

Representative Wyhrauch argued that there had been no

determ nation that it was not workable. Instead, discussion
ended in determning where the paynent would conme from to
finance the mechanism for the anendnent. The gover nnent

needs to be held responsible to pay. He stressed that these
peopl e are putting their lives on the line and being killed

in the l|ine of duty. Their famlies would be left
destitute. He stated that he could not norally vote for any
reduction in benefits to any w dow or child. The State

gover nnent nust pay for that benefit.

1:46: 20 PM

Co- Chair Meyer accepted Anendnent #14 as an anendnent to the
anendnent . He reiterated concern that Anendnent #14 had
previously been w thdrawn. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED to the
MOTI ON t o AMEND Anendnent #8A.

Representati ve Hawker stated that peace officers receive 50%
wage benefit plus are granted nedical provisions. He asked
if the anmendnent to the anendnent would restore both the
wage and nedi cal factor.

Co-Chair Meyer pointed out previous concerns wth the
amendnent and asked if they still exist. Ms. Ml horn
stated that the death and disability benefits under the PERS
and Teachers Retirenent System (TRS) were structured in such
a way [and not under a defined benefit type of plan], which
determnes the benefit based on nenber’s retirenent
calcul ation as a streamof paynent to that individual. That
is the difference between the two structures. She
summari zed the structure and funding of the two would be
different.

Representative Seaton referenced Section D of the bill,
regarding major nedical coverage elected by the surviving
spouse of the eligible nenber.

1: 50: 05 PM

Representative Croft noted that nost of the persons being
referenced [as killed on the job] would not have been
“retired”. The above I|anguage references retirees.

House Fi nance Committee 6 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Represent ati ve Seaton responded that SB 141 was a retirenent
bill and that there was a different section for the active
enpl oyees. Representative Croft argued that the above
referenced | anguage does not identify the person killed on
t he j ob.

Vice-Chair Stoltze noted his concern that the death benefit
be included in the |egislation.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if it could be workable under the
defined contribution plan. M. MIllhorn stated that current
provisions are structured in such a way that they work well
with the defined contribution (DC) plan. The manner in
which that benefit is calculated has the sanme design, but
woul d create issues under a DC pl an.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if it could work under the defined
contribution plan. Ms. MIllhorn responded it mght be
probl emati c.

1: 54: 23 PM

Representative Wyhrauch questioned if a public enployee
hired under the defined contribution plan, were killed or
injured in the line of duty, would they be treated as if
they were hired under Tier 3. M. MIIhorn understood that
the anmendnent was intended to do that, however, there are
cost issues associated with that action. She added that
fundanmental structures would need to be in place for that
design as opposed to the defined contribution plan. A DC
pl an woul d make it indeterm nate.

1: 55: 38 PM

Representati ve Hawker agreed that it would be “problematic”.
He pointed out the overriding federal regulations in the
way. It becones problematic with the construct regarding
the death benefits for peace officers. He agreed that the
anendnent to the anmendnent was problematic and was found to
be an invalid attenpt and illustrates the problem of the
entire situation. He would not support Amendnent #8A. Co-
Chair Meyer agreed that Anendnent #8A coul d be broader.

Representative Kelly summari zed his understanding. He said
that the anmendnent does not include “other” enployees. It
would be difficult to do that and should be addressed in a
separate anendnent. He submtted that Amendnent #8A does
“generously” address benefits for the police and fire
enpl oyees, especially when linking it together wth the
federal contribution amount of % mllion dollars. He
encour aged nenber’s support.

1: 59: 00 PM

House Fi nance Committee 7 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer asked about broadening Anmendnent #8A.
Representative Kelly stated that he could not *“support”
t hat . He comented that Anmendnent #11 offers different
opti ons.

Representative Croft pointed out that those affected would
prefer the current system — “It works for these people”.
The State does not know how the proposed system woul d work.
In other States, problens have resulted. He recommended
that costs be covered through the General Fund.

2:01: 54 PM

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to place the
ver bi age of Amendnent #14 into Anendnent #8A.

I N FAVOR: Joul e, Stoltze, Weyhrauch, Croft
OPPCSED: Foster, Hawker, Holm Kelly, Moses, Myer,
Chenaul t

The MOTI ON FAILED (4-7).
2: 02:45 PM

Representative Hawker reconmended a defined benefit
structure and asked if police and firefighters should be
left in the existing defined benefit structure. Then the
defined contribution structure could apply to non-public
safety enpl oyees. He worried about prejudicing one class of
enpl oyee over anot her.

Representative Hawker voiced concern that the anmendment
“pl aces a dollar value on certain lives”.

2:05:10 PM

Representative Wyhrauch asked to mke a conceptual
anendnent to Anendnent #8A. The conceptual | anguage woul d
read: “For any enployee hired after the effective date of
this act, who is killed or disabled in the course of their
enpl oynent, the provision of AS 14.25.157, 160, 162, or
39. 35.410, 415, 420, 430, and 440 as they existed before the
effective date of this act, shall apply.” Representati ve
Hawker OBJECTED

Representative Wyhrauch stated that the |anguage would
repl ace Amendnent #8A and if the enployee was killed or
injured in the line of duty, they would not be treated the
sane as they would in the defined contribution plan but
rather the same as they would be in the Tier 3 plan.

Ms. M1l horn thought the concept returned the Commttee to
that of Amendnent #14. Representative Weyhrauch stated that

House Fi nance Committee 8 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



the language was nore “elegant and would provide a nore
si npl e approach”.

2:07: 35 PM

Representative Kelly maintained that the original Amendnment
#8A was a “great offer” and provided an annuity option. He
reiterated it was generous and that select term insurance
was al so avail abl e and affordabl e.

Vice-Chair Stoltze thought that the proposed anmendnent woul d
“narrow the scoop” of the discussed |anguage and that it
would fit the death benefits for police and firefighters.
He pointed out that the occurrences were rare and that the
system coul d absorb it.

2:09: 05 PM

Co-Chair Meyer did not believe the proposed |anguage woul d
be the correct fix.

2:09: 39 PM

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to adopt the
conceptual anmendnent to Amendnent #8A.

I N FAVOR: Croft, Hawker , Joul e, Moses, Stoltze,
Weyhr auch
OPPCSED: Foster, Holm Kelly, Chenault, Meyer

The MOTI ON PASSED ( 6-5) .

There being NO further OBJECTION, Anendnent #8A was adopted
as anended.

Representative Kelly MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent #9A, which
changes the enploynent contribution structure to distinguish
between police and fire enployees fromall the other nenbers
of the PERS system Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED.

Ms. MIllhorn advised that based on the adoption of the
anended Anendnent #8A, the Departnent does not know what the
costs wll Dbe. There could be an issue regarding the
percentage of that increase.

2:12:45 PM

Representati ve Hawker interjected that Amendnent #9A was not
necessary given the adoption of Anendnent #8A. Ms. M| horn
explained there would be a difference in the funding
structure of the two plans. She was not certain what the
addi tional costs would be.

2:14:55 PM

House Fi nance Committee 9 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Representative Hawker reiterated that Amendnent #9A was
unnecessary.

Representative Kelly commented that there was a way to stay
on the defined contribution side of the funding. He
suggested that the new Amendnent #8A “crosses an odd nonent
of tinme”. Anmendnent #9A provides an associ ated benefit with
the previous tier. He encouraged the Commttee to nove
ahead with the funding and providing the Departnment the
needed tools. M. MIIlhorn acknow edged it woul d hel p.

Co-Chair Meyer recomended w thdrawi ng Anmendnent #9A and
revisiting to it later with new | anguage.

2:16: 24 PM

Representative Kelly W THDREW Anendnent #9A. There being NO
OBJECTIQN, it was w t hdrawn.

2:16:46 PM

Representative Kelly MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent #10A. Co-
Chair Meyer OBJECTED.

Representative Kelly explained that the amendnent woul d add
a new section on Page 57, followng Line 6. The anendnent
would note that an enployee mght opt to have additional
wage reductions to be paid into a separate account in the
Departnent for sel ected supplenental benefits.

2:17: 34 PM

Representative Croft commented that ~currently, soneone
di sabled or killed on the job, would be covered under the
previ ous nentioned sections. Representati ve Weyhrauch said
that was correct.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch indicated his support for Amendnent
#10A.

Co-Chair Meyer W THDREW his OBJECTI ON. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, Anendnent #10A was adopt ed.

2:19: 20 PM

Representative Kelly MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent #11. Co-Chair
Meyer OBJECTED.

Representative Kelly explained that the anendnent would
delete all material on Page 59, Lines 24-27 and would insert
new | anguage regarding the eligibility requirenment of AS
14.25.470 or AS 39. 35. 870. It provides that an enpl oyee
could leave the systemonly up to ten years in order to have

House Fi nance Committee 10 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



their account remain open. He thought that the other system
was not fair.

Representative Croft read |anguage from Page 59, Lines 24-
27, of the House State Affairs version. The effect of the
amendnent woul d make that account “go away” after ten years.
He asked if the person had earned that noney, why would it
“go away”.

2:22:28 PM

Represent ati ve Seat on di scussed how | ong the noney shoul d be
tracked. The House State Affairs (HSTA) version did not
place a limt on the tine. He added it would only affect
t he Heal t h Rei mbursenent Account (HRA)

2:23:43 PM

Representative Croft spoke in support of the HSTA version

He inquired the intent for those funds after that ten-year
peri od. Representative Seaton explained that if the
enpl oyee was not vested, they would not receive the funds
and that the funds would stay in the system

2:25:01 PM

Representative Kelly pointed out that in the original Senate
bill, it was at five-years. Anendnent #11 noves it to ten-
years. He believed that was an inprovenent over the

original bill

2:26: 15 PM

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to adopt Amendnent
#11.

I N FAVOR: Kelly, Mses, Weyhrauch, Chenault
OPPCSED: Foster, Hawker, Holm Joule, Stoltze, Croft,
Meyer

The MOTI ON FAILED (4-7).
2:27:17 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #18, #24-
LS0637\ X. 3, Craver, 4/26/05. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED.

Representati ve Weyhrauch explained that the anmendnment woul d
allow a nenber to increase their contribution from 8% to
11% It would have the enployer to increase contributions
from4.5%to 8.5%

AT EASE: 2: 30: 36 PM
RECONVENED: 2:40: 22 PM

House Fi nance Committee 11 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Representative Seaton commented that testinony heard in HSTA
Comm ttee indicated that enpl oyees had not wanted to see the
percent ages i ncreased.

2:42: 02 PM

Representative Hawker reflected on the anendnent. He
observed that enployees should be encouraged but not
required to make a high level of savings wth provided
i ncentives.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch W THDREW Anendnent #18.
2.:43:28 PM

Representative Wyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #19.
OBJECTED. Co-Chair Meyer OBJECTED for the purpose of
di scussi on.

Representati ve Weyhrauch explained that the anmendnment woul d
prevent increases beyond 2% a year, while placing a cap on
it. Representative Seaton noted that HSTA Comm ttee had not
di scussed that issue adding that the current |limt was 5%
Representative Croft said he had wanted to draft simlar
| egi sl ati on.

Representative Croft MOVED to AMEND Amendnent #19, inserting
“or decreases” after “increases”. There being NO OBJECTI ON,
it was changed.

2:46: 06 PM

Representative Kelly stated he objected to Arendnent #19.

Co-Chair Meyer asked if it addressed existing |anguage.
Representati ve Wyhrauch explained that it applies to the
existing system but does not deal wth the defined
contribution plan. The proposed bill does not address
concerns in the current PERS and TRS system

Co-Chair Meyer inquired if the anendnent added a new
section. Representative Weyhrauch «clarified it was
conceptual and woul d be under existing |anguage in the PERS
and TRS st at utes.

Represent ati ve Hawker thought that this would be good timng
for Amendnent #109. It is inportant that the pension plan
never gets bought. The reserve of assets is advisable and
it is inmportant when an enployee retires, they can count on
their cash flow  The defined benefit plan is based on the
concept of “continuity of existence”. He reiterated that
Amendnent #19 would provide a good managenent tool and was
t he responsi bl e approach.

House Fi nance Committee 12 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



2:52: 08 PM

Representative Seaton interjected that the only system
currently in place is raising the enployer contribution
rate. |If that does not happen, everything in it would grow
at an estimated 8. 25% per year.

2:53: 04 PM

Representative Kelly thought that the 2% assunmes that the
State is in better shape than it really is. He preferred to
keep the “pressure on the enployee”. He encouraged the
change.

2:54: 29 PM

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Hawker, Joule, Stoltze, Wyhrauch, Croft
OPPCSED: Holm Kelly, Mses, Foster, Chenault, Meyer

The MOTI ON FAI LED (5-6).

Representative Wyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #20.
Vi ce-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED

Representati ve Weyhrauch noted that the anmendnent adds a new
section. The proposed bill does not deal with the current
PERS and TRS unfunded liability concerns. The anmendnent
recommends that the Legislature solve the problens next year
and if that does not happen, the act would sunset on June
1%, 2006.

2:57: 07 PM

Representati ve Hawker applauded Anmendnent #20 and urged
consideration of it. He pointed out conponents within SB
141, dealing wth the unfunded liability plan. He asked if
Representative Wyhrauch would support |anguage stating
“resulting in new plan tiers”. Representative Wyhrauch
responded that had been his intent and that he had no
obj ecti on gauge.

There bei ng NO OBJECTI ON, the anmended | anguage was added.
2:58:55 PM

Representative Kelly indicated that he woul d not support the
anmendnent. Representative Weyhrauch stated he felt strongly
about it. He thought that there were nechanisns to help fix
the PERS & TRS concerns. He acknow edged that it would not
be popul ar because it would involve bonds and big spending;
however, stressed it was “too serious to ignore”.

House Fi nance Committee 13 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



3:00: 46 PM

Representative Seaton pointed out that the HSTA Committee
had also been dealing with HB 238, which has a funding
mechani sm for past service costs and for the new enpl oyees
comng on |ine. $2.68 billion dollars would need to be
deposi t ed.

3:01: 24 PM

Co- Chair Meyer understood that the intent of the |egislation
was only to establish a structure to deal wth the

“bl eeding”. He was concerned that the anmendnent would only
give the process one year to succeed or fail, which he did
not believe was enough tine. Representative Wyhrauch
responded it would be one year nore than the Legislature has
had on the entire bill. He believed that the Legislature
could amend the legislation in the follow ng year, to create
a bill with universal agreenent.

Vice-Chair Stoltze agreed with the need to stop the bl eeding
and to address current statew de deficiencies. He stated
that the anendnent could provide the State with a nechani sm
to address the concerns. He supported the anendnent.

3:04: 21 PM

Representative Hawker MOWED to AMEND Anendnent #20,
inserting |anguage: “Resulting in new plan tiers”, into
Section (A), following “act”. There being NO OBJECTION, it
was anended.

Co- Chair Meyer voiced concern that new enpl oyees hired after

the bill passes, would be confused regardi ng which plan they
wer e under. Additionally, it could cause admnistrative
conf usi on.

Vice-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTI ON. Co- Chair Meyer
OBJECTED.

3: 05: 44 PM

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to adopt anended
Amendnent #20.

I N FAVOR: Joule, Stoltze, Weyhrauch, Croft, Hawker
OPPCSED: Holm Kelly, Mses, Foster, Meyer

Co- Chair Chenault was not present for the vote.
The MOTI ON FAI LED (5-5).
3:06: 27 PM

House Fi nance Committee 14 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Representative Wyhrauch MOED to ADOPT Anendnent #21
Vice-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch expl ai ned that adding a new section
woul d anmend the uncodified law of the State of Al aska and
woul d make the Legislative intent a part of the bill

3:07:16 PM

Representative Seaton advised that |anguage had originally
been included in the bill; however, it was requested that it
be Intent Language because if listed as intent, it would be
nore open. He wanted to guarantee that the cost contai nnent
noves forward.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch recomended addi ng | anguage to Line
3, “but not limted to”, which would provides a range of
exanpl es and woul d broaden the range of possibilities. He
MOVED t hat change. There being NO OBJECTI ON, Anmendnent #21
was anended.

Vice-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTI ON. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, anended Anendnent #21 was adopt ed.

Representative Wyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #22.
Vi ce-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED

3:09:31 PM

Representative Wyhrauch advi sed that Amendnent #22
regarding the University of Al aska, deletes Section 35-50
The University has hired faculty fromother facilities that
have a 401K plan, bringing theminto the University s plan.
The University wants the ability to offer those enployees
the option of the defined contribution plan to dovetail wth
their existing plans. He noted that the Board of Regents
currently has the authority to set the rates on their
optional retirenment plan. Amendnent #22 woul d del ete that
out of the bill.

3:10:41 PM

Representative Seaton said that he had spoke to the
University and that Sections 33 & 34 would manage it if the
bill passes. The sponsor’s intention was to delete the
boar d. Representati ve Wyhrauch explained that the intent
was to force the retirenent program not the managenent
structure.

Representative Kelly comented that concerns regarding the
University are a large portion of the bill. The current
University contribution should not continue to be tied to
that in the future. Additionally, it reflects broad support

House Fi nance Committee 15 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



on canpus. It leaves it up to the Board of Regents and
woul d affect no existing enployees. He spoke against the
anmendnent, noting that the University strongly favors the
current system

3:13: 52 PM

Representative Wyhrauch countered that the University
enpl oyees did not want the proposed system

3:14:15 PM

BRUCE LUDW G  BUSI NESS MANAGER, ALASKA PUBLI C EMPLOYEES
ASSCCI ATION (APEA), noted that all enployees his Union
represents are opposed to that aspect for future hires. The
Board of Regents has the ability to change the contri bution
rate. The enployees at the University should be able to
transfer wthin the nunicipalities and have the sane
portability they currently enjoy.

3:15:14 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked if there was a way to solve
the issue. M. Ludwmg replied that the Board of Regents
shoul d make a decision to cut the rate.

Representative Kelly disagreed and stressed that is a “nust”
i ssue for the University.

3:16: 23 PM

M. Ludw g advised that was included in Title 14 and gives
the Board of Regents the authority to set it up. Co- Chair
Meyer was confused and thought that the sponsor’s staff
shoul d address it.

TRACI CARPENTER, STAFF, SENATOR LYDA GREEN, explained that
the University approached the Senator requesting the
| anguage be added for several reasons:

. Their contribution rates to the optional retirenent
were tied to the three-year average of the TRS
contribution rate. It is true that the Board of

Regents is responsible for meking that decision and
can set the rates.

. The University would like to be able to offer both
the optional retirement program and a nmandatory
program They wanted the option to create sonething
that they could attract new enployees to the
University with.

. They want to be able to develop their own health
care plan.

House Fi nance Committee 16 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



. There is issue related to the contracts expiring
June 2006.

. The University wants to nmake it clear that
retirement rights are not subject to selective
bar gai ni ng.

3.19:21 PM

Representati ve Hawker asked the Union's objection to that
| anguage. M. Ludwg stated that for the classified
enpl oyees, it would end the portability that «currently
exists in the TRS system Representative Croft asked which
section M. Ludwig was referencing. M. Ludwig replied

Sections 35-50. Anot her objection, if those persons were
not already in the State retirenment system there is a
gquestion if the Constitution would apply. |If that were the
case, the enployee groups should be able to bargain wth
their enployer to put nore noney into pension or wages.

3:21: 08 PM

Representative Hawker understood that the argunent was
absolute portability. M. Ludwi g explained that there was a
phase-in for vestnent. If an enployee worked for three
years, they would not be able to access 100% of their noney
and that woul d not be considered “portability”.

Representative Hawker asked if the Union was |ooking for
i medi ate vesting in all contri butions. M. Ludw g
expl ained that was not what the anendnent addresses. The
current system provides portability in the State of Al aska
and that an enployee’s pension would follow them as does
their vesting. If the University were allowed to separate
and no longer be a part of that system the portability
woul d | eave.

Representati ve Hawker understood that the University is a
part of the State system which a guarantee that what

happens there occurs within the entire State system He
guestioned the nerit of allowng the University to nake
those decisions internally. M. Ludwig replied that the
bill would renmove it fromthe collective bargaining unit for

negoti ati ons.

3:23: 25 PM

M. Ludw g explained that even the Court system was covered
within the PERS & TRS system Representative Hawker thought
that the | anguage was a bit “over-reaching”.

3:24: 20 PM

House Fi nance Committee 17 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Represent ati ve Foster asked how it would affect portability.
Ms. Carpenter responded that M. Ludwg's interpretation
could be correct in that Section 35 indicates that the
retirenment prograns could be optional or mandatory. In the
future, the University could create a mandatory program and
mght not be in the PERS or TRS system at that tine.
Presently, the University enployees who are nenbers of the
PERS and TRS program would remain in. The |anguage affects
only a person hired after July 1, 2005. Ri ght now,
retirement benefits are not subj ect to collective
bar gai ni ng. The University requested that the |anguage be
clear so they can pronote the optional retirenment program

3:26:29 PM

M. Ludw g explained that the University held neetings with
the Uni on announcing their intention to make it a “mandatory
optional plan” for all enployees at the University.

3:26: 56 PM

PETE KELLY, DI RECTOR, STATE RELATIONS, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA,
agreed wwth comments nmade by M. Carpenter. He expl ai ned
the conpetitive process the University goes through to
entice enployees, which is different from other State
agencies. They would Iike to see that section renmain in the
bill.

3:27:47 PM

Representative Hawker asked if it was the University's
intent to offer the option of renoving the pension plan from
the protection provided to State enpl oyees. Also, would the
University continue the prohibition against collective
bar gai ni ng.

M. Kelly said yes. It allows the Board of Regents to
establish rates on a nore conpetitive base. It is
“inperative” t hat t he Uni versity remain conpetitive

nati onw de. He reiterated that the University marketpl ace
is nore conpetitive than others.

3:29:51 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze thought that the situation was nore
“global” and would nost likely affect the custodial staff as
well. M. Ludwi g said that was correct. The optional plan
is currently in place. Presently, about half of the
professional staff has selected the optional plan in
statute.

Vice-Chair Stoltze inquired how many enployees would be

af f ect ed. M. Ludwig replied there are 2,000 enployees
currently claimng PERS & TRS in that system M. Kelly

House Fi nance Committee 18 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



corrected that there are about 3,600 full tinme enpl oyees and
7,000 seasonal enpl oyees.

Vice-Chair Stoltze inquired about the protections. M.
Kelly explained that the mtigating factor results from a
hi gher level within that system

3:32: 37 PM

Representative Kelly added that if the Legislature adopts a
defined contribution plan, it would be an opportune tine to
shift the plan wthin the University. There is a
denonstrated “popularity” for the other retirenment plan. He
noted he woul d vote agai nst the anendnent.

3:33: 50 PM

Representative Croft asked what the effect would be if
| anguage on Page 39, Line 26, clarified that retirenent
prograns nmust be optional. M. Ludwig said that would
satisfy nost of the concerns, as it would still provide the
optional plan. The University could offer different plans
dependi ng on the type of service that the enpl oyee provides
to the institution. He thought that custodians, working
anywhere in the State system should have the sanme pension
pl an opti ons.

3:35: 53 PM

M. Kelly argued that woul d be the | anguage in the DC plan.

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to adopt the
anended Anmendnent #22.

I N FAVOR: Joul e, Stoltze, Weyhrauch, Croft, Hawker
OPPCSED: Kelly, Mses, Foster, Holm Chenault, Meyer

The MOTI ON FAI LED (5-6).
3:37: 05 PM

Representative Hawker MOVED to ADOPT conceptual Amendnent
#23. Representative Kelly OBJECTED.

Representative Hawker explained that the anendnent would

remove all |anguage instituting a new tier system

3:39:23 PM

Additionally, the amendnment would add a new bill section,
which would add back a section from the original Senate
ver si on. It would have all current active nenbers

participate in future changes for the normal cost factor of
funding the plan and would anmpbunt to a small portion over

House Fi nance Committee 19 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



time fromthe current contribution. The change could bring
| 'abor interests into long-term concerns regarding nedical
i ssues.

Representative Hawker discussed new |anguage that would
authorize the Minicipal Bond Bank to engage in pension
obligation transactions as drafted in HB 278. He pointed
out that both the Alaska Minicipal League and the Al aska
Governnent  Finance Oficer’s Association supports the
| anguage. He said he discussed the issue with Senator
Steadman and that it would allow the unfunded liability
f unded.

Representative Hawker pointed out a change to Page 5 of
anmendnent, which would add a fiscal note to fund the TRS
conponent of HB 1.

Representative Hol m asked how that bond authorization woul d
affect the State’'s rating. Representative Hawker understood
that the rating agencies consider the unfunded pension
obligation when funding. The issuance of a formal bond to
mtigate sone of that debt could actually raise the State's
public debt perspective on Wll Street.

3:45: 23 PM
Co-Chair Meyer suggested that bonding could still be
i npl enent ed Wi t hout “gutting t he whol e bill”.

Representati ve Hawker advised deferring action on the new
tier systemat this time and that such action could provide
the Legislature the opportunity to wuse the sumer to
consider the retirenent and benefit plans. He mai ntai ned
that there has not been adequate tine to adequately explore
the existing plan and the proposed changes.

Representative Seaton interjected that the HSTA Committee
dealt with Page 1, Lines 7-15. He opined that it could
cause a lawsuit. Representative Hawker noted he had not yet
di scussed the option with the |abor unions.

3:48: 14 PM

Representative Seaton referred to the normal cost rate
sheet. (Copy on File.) He explained that the current PERS
cost rate is 14.28% enpl oyer; TRS is 14.28% enpl oyeer. The
total contribution is 22.93%

Representative Hawker recomended that enployees bear a
portion of the costs. Representative Seaton responded that
the original language limted an increase on an enployee
contribution to an increase of one half percent per year
He did not think that [|anguage had been included
Representative Hawker quoted |anguage from the bill
denonstrating inclusion of that was critical point.

House Fi nance Committee 20 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer requested nore information on the proposed
bondi ng nmechani sm

3:51: 24 PM

TOM BOUTIN, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,
advised that he was famliar wth pension obligation bonds.
If pension obligation bonds were to be issued by the
muni cipalities, the Minicipal Bond Bank would be the place
to doit. He believed that if the fiduciaries wanted to use
| everage, there could be a nore cost effective way to do it.
| ssuance tends to be about 2% of the bond proceeds. He
added that credit rating agencies are not very favorable on
t hose bonds.

Representati ve Hawker said the market place would prevail
He mintained that the Legislature is giving |ocal
governnments the authority and option to nmake that decision.

3: 55: 08 PM

Co-Chair Meyer thought that Anendnent #23 addresses two
subj ect s. Representative Hawker believed that was an
appropriate place to bring up pension bonds.

3:55: 39 PM

Representative Croft spoke to “sharing the burden” with the
enpl oyer/ enpl oyee through the rates. He acknow edged t hat
the anmendnent identifies that the risk is shared as opposed
to the HSTA version of the bill. He commented that the
i ssue woul d appear sooner or later. The current bill shifts
the risk entirely to the enployees, while the anmendnent
shares the risk between the two. He argued for the adoption
of Amendnent #23.

3:58: 27 PM

Representative Kelly enphasized that the work done on the
bill to date should not be changed by the anendnent. He
submitted that there is a $5.7 nmillion unfunded liability
that needs fixing and SB 141 is a nore conservative plan and
could do it. He spoke strongly agai nst Amendnent #23 and
opined that it would create a |lawsuit. He believed that
nore time would be necessary to address bonding issues. He
restated previous argunents in favor of the HSTA Commttee
version of SB 141.

4:03:46 PM

Representati ve Hawker indicated his concern that the DC pl an
has been presented as an option that could “stop the
bl eedi ng”. He stated that adopting the plan neans that no

House Fi nance Committee 21 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



new enpl oyee noney would go into the existing pension plan.

He maintained that the bill would “cut out the heart of the
existing plan.” He related three overriding principles:

. Shared benefit of joint investnent,

. Shared risk of the cost, and

. Continuity of the plan.

He voiced concern about maintaining the current plan for a
| ong period. He proposed a hybrid plan conbining the DB and
DC pl ans. He stated that there are too many unanswered
questions and requested nore tinme to adequately address the
pension situation through a nore open process.

4:08:51 PM

Representative Kelly spoke to the point made by
Represent ati ve Hawker that the enployee’s contribution would
not be adequate under the DC plan. He stated that was not
correct and listed problens of waiting until next year to
address those concerns. He noted that there would be 5,500
new hires, which will create an unfunded liability risk.

4:11: 21 PM

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to adopt Amendnent
#23.

I N FAVOR: Weyhrauch, Croft, Hawker, Joule
OPPCSED: Kelly, Moses, Stoltze, Foster, Holm Myer
Chenaul t

The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-7).

Representative Croft MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #24.
Represent ati ve Joul e OBJECTED.

Representative Croft explained that Anmendnment #24 would

elimnate all aspects except the Board. He related the
difficulties of living on a small retirenent stipend even
with decent nedical opportunity. He stated that the

anendnent would apply to all enployees and could attract
nore qualified future enployees to the State. He expl ai ned
that the gap was not created by the defined benefit system
but by m smanagenent. The target would provide an adequate
retirement benefit.

4:18: 14 PM

Representative Kelly reported that the entire nation is
considering health <care concerns at this tine. He
enphasi zed that the State of Al aska can no |longer afford to

House Fi nance Committee 22 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



“underwite” that risk. He wurged a no vote on the
anmendnent .

Representative Wyhrauch questioned if there had been
testinony in the HSTA Commttee regarding no nore noney
comng in to fund PERS/ TRS. Representative Seaton admtted

that there has been confusion regarding that issue. The
retirement systemis pre-funded and explained how the past
service cost was created. He added that the entire wage

base was a percentage base.
Representative Joul e mai ntai ned his objection.

4:21:25 PM

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to adopt Amendnent
#24.

I N FAVOR: Moses, Weyhrauch, Croft, Hawker, Joul e
OPPCOSED: Stoltze, Foster, Holm Kelly, Meyer, Chenault

The MOTI ON FAI LED (5-6).
Representative Croft W THDREW Anmendnent #25.

Representative Wyhrauch MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #26.
Vi ce-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED

Representative Wyhrauch explained the anmendnent addressed
| egi sl ative enpl oyees, deleting “120 days” on Page 77, Lines
9 and 14, and replacing it with “100 days”.

4:24:35 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze maintained his objection.

Representative Kelly asked clarification. Representati ve
Weyhrauch reiterated the intent.

4:26:29 PM

Representative Croft inquired about vesting and if it would
affect people that are at that |evel of service already.

Representative Wyhrauch understood that the person’s
current status could not be taken away. The | anguage woul d
only apply to the DC benefit plan.

Vice-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTI ON. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, Anendnent #26 was adopt ed.

Representative Kelly MOWED to ADOPT new Anmendnent #27.

OBJECTED. Vice-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for discussion
pur poses.

House Fi nance Committee 23 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



AT EASE: 4:28:21 PM
RECONVENE: 4: 47: 23 PM

Ms. MIlhorn indicated that the Division had requested the
anmendnent . She explained that the anendnent woul d address
current |anguage under the DC plan, dealing with second
famlies of deceased nenbers, specifically retirees. The
amendnent speaks to that area within the existing statute
provi si ons. It would renove coverage for an undefined
nunmber of spouses of survivors covered under the nedical
pl an who are not eligible for the nedical benefits in accord
with the Internal Revenue Code, Section 152. The Division
is engaged in determning how many individuals it would
inpact. She stated that the circunstance nust be corrected
and renedi ed.

4:50: 33 PM

Representative Wyhrauch questioned the downside of the
anendnent . Ms. MIlhorn replied there is no downside. It
woul d preserve the tax-qualified status for the plan. For
those individuals receiving the benefits would no |onger be
eligible for that coverage.

4:51:45 PM

Representative Hawker asked if current statute was
inconsistent with the federal qualified plan and thus
endangering the plan. M. MIIlhorn agreed.

4:52:41 PM

Representative Weyhrauch inquired if the anmendnent had cone
forward because it was noticed that something was wong with
the bill. Ms. MIlhorn comented that the need for the
amendnent canme forward followng an analysis of sone tier
| egi slation. A Departnent of Law representative discovered
t he issue.

VIRG NI A RAGE, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OCF
LAW noted that the issue becane apparent when the
Departnent was working as consultants on the | egislation.

Representative Croft asked who the people were that woul d no
| onger receive those benefits.

4:54: 00 PM

Ms. Ragle responded it would be the new spouse and/or new
dependants of the survivor of the retiree.

House Fi nance Committee 24 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Vice-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTI O\ Represent ati ve
Weyhrauch observed that the amendnent addresses the existing
PERS/ TRS structure. It would not preclude anendnents
related to the Tier 1, 2 and 3 systens.

There being NO further OBJECTI O\, Anendnent #27 was adopt ed.
4:54: 57 PM

Representative Kelly MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent #28. Vi ce-
Chair Stoltze OBJECTED.

Represent ati ve Weyhrauch expl ai ned that Anmendnent #28, woul d
add a new subsection to Page 49. The anendnent addresses

the additional fiduciary obligation of the Board. He
requested to amend Anmendnent #28 by adding the |anguage,
“Assist in prescribing policies”. He thought that would

create nore an advisory capacity.

Representative Seaton commented that the structure of the
new board would be different fromthe old one. They would
be providing actuarial, balancing and financing. The
Director of the Division of Retirenent and Benefits woul d be
running the system and thought that the anended anendnent
woul d make it a nore difficult duty for the board.

Representati ve Weyhrauch acknowl edged his intent place it
nore into an advi sory capacity.

4:58:11 PM

Representative Kelly agreed, it would not obligate the Board
to wite the regul ati ons but would keep them nore connect ed.

4:58: 47 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTI ON. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, anended Anendnent #28 was adopt ed.

Representative Hawker MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #29. Co-
Chair Meyer OBJECTED.

4:59:14 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker expl ained that the anendnent addressed
t he pension obligation bond authority. The anendnent woul d
provide an option for the comunities and nunicipalities.
He pointed out it has w de support on both sides of the
Legi sl ature.

5:00: 32 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze MAINTAINED his OBJECTION as he thought
that the anendnment was a separate bill.

House Fi nance Committee 25 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



Representative Kelly agreed with Vice Chair Stoltze. He
preferred that Anendnent #29 [HB 278] be a separate piece of
| egi sl ati on.

5:02: 50 PM

Co- Chair Meyer echoed sentinents of the previous testinony.
He pointed out that HB 278 was currently in the House State
Affairs commttee. Representative Seaton acknow edged t hat
was true.

Representative Croft maintained that if Anendnent #29 were
not adopted, legislators would not be addressing the
TRS/ PERS concern. SB 141 does define a new system however,
the ol d bal ance is not being addressed.

5:04:15 PM

Representative Kelly expected that the new board would be
charged with providing reconmendations. He suggested it
woul d be the natural place to put HB 278.

5:05: 23 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker responded to Representative Kelly that
there was nothing in Amendnent #29 that related it to the
Percent of Market Val ue (POW) approach.

Co-Chair Meyer |ooked forward to HB 278 conming to the House
Fi nance Comm ttee for discussion purposes. He commented it
woul d be premature to take it up without the House State
Affairs Commttee doing their work first. He pointed out
t hat adoption would require a title change.

A roll call vote was taken on the notion to adopt Amendnent
#29.

I N FAVOR: Weyhrauch, Croft, Hawker, Joule, Stoltze
OPPCSED: Foster, Holm Kelly, Mses, Myer, Chenault

The MOTI ON FAI LED (5-6).
5:09:17 PM

Co-Chair Chenault pointed out that fiscal note #8 had been
zeroed out. He explained the reasoning for that change.

There being NO OBJECTI ON, the new note was adopt ed.
5.:12:08 PM

Representative Foster MOVED to REPORT HCS CS SB 141 (FIN)
out of Commttee with individual recomendations and wth

House Fi nance Committee 26 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



the acconpanying fiscal notes. Representati ve Wyhrauch
OBJECTED.

5:14: 02 PM

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Foster, Hawker , Kel ly, Moses, Stoltze,
Chenaul t, Meyer
OPPCSED: Croft, Joule, Weyhrauch

Representative Hol mwas not present for the vote.
The MOTI ON PASSED (7-3).

HCS CS SB 141 (FIN) was reported out of Comnmttee with a “no
recommendation” and with a new fiscal note by the Departnent
of Adm nistration and a new zero note by the House Finance
Commttee for the Departnment of Adm nistration, fiscal note
#1 by the Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities
and fiscal notes #2, #4, #5, #6 and #7 by the Departnent of
Revenue.

#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 5:14 P.M

House Fi nance Committee 27 05/01/05 1:18 P. M



